

Management's Discussion and Analysis for the Period Ended June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

To our Shareholders	3
Forward Looking Statements	4
Group Overview	5
Q2 2025 Highlights	6
Q2 2025 in Review	7
Selected Quarterly Financial Information	9
External Factors	10
Results of Operations	10
Operation and Financial Results	11
Sales, General and Administrative Expenses:	12
Liquidity and Cash Flows	14
Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings	16
Leases	16
Off-Balance Sheet Financing	16
Financial Instruments	17
Financial Reporting Standards	19
Critical Judgements and Accounting Estimates	19
Management's Report on Internal Controls	22
Outstanding Share Data	23
Risks	23
Qualified Person	33
Further information	33
Glossary	34

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the operating results and financial condition of Verde Agritech Ltd and its subsidiaries ("Verde" or the "Group") covers the period ended June 30, 2025 ("Q2 2025").

It provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the consolidated results of operations and financial condition. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the financial statements for the second quarter of 2025 ("FS Q2 2025"). The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and their interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and with IFRS and their interpretations issued by the IASB.

Verde's ordinary shares trade in Canada on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") under the symbol "NPK", and on the OTC Markets ("OTCMKTS") under the symbol "VNPKF".

All amounts herein are expressed in Canadian Dollars unless otherwise stated, and the information is current as of August 8th, 2025.

On June 30, 2025, the average rate of exchange was 4.08 and the closing rate was 3.99 Brazilian Real ("R\$") to the Canadian Dollar ("CAD"). These rates were used to prepare these financial results.

Additional information relating to Verde is available under the Group's profile on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.ca and the Group's website at www.investor.verde.ag.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. Although the Group believes that its expectations, reflected in forward-looking information, to be reasonable, such information involves known or unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group or the Group's projects in Brazil to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking information. Such risk factors include, but are not limited to: general business, economic, competitive, political and social uncertainties; the actual results from current development activities; conclusions of economic evaluations; unexpected increases in capital or operating costs; changes in equity markets, inflation and changes in foreign currency exchange rates; changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined; changes in labor costs; future prices of commodities; possible variations of mineral grade or recovery rates; accidents, labor disputes and other risks of the mineral exploration industry; political risks arising from operating in Brazil; delays in obtaining governmental consents, permits, licenses and registrations; approvals or financing; as well as those factors discussed in the section entitled "Risks" in this MD&A.

Although the Group has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual actions, events, or results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking information, there may be other factors that cause actions, events or results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that forward-looking information will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such information. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking information. The forward-looking information contained herein, unless stated otherwise, is made at the date of this MD&A, and the Group takes no responsibility to update them or to revise them to reflect new events or circumstances, except as required by law.

GROUP OVERVIEW

Verde is an agricultural technology group of companies that produces potassium fertilizers. The Group's purpose is to improve the health of all people and the planet.

By diversifying the global potash supply chain, the Group aims to reduce dependence on two primary suppliers, fostering stability and resilience in the essential agricultural resource.

Its four-pillar approach positions Verde as a leader in sustainable solutions with a significant global impact:

- 1. **Longevity Equality:** Through nutrient enrichment and sustainable agricultural practices, Verde Agritech addresses hidden hunger and works to close the longevity gap, ensuring access to essential nutrients for everyone, regardless of socioeconomic background.
- 2. **Geopolitical Security:** By diversifying the global potash supply chain, we aim to reduce dependence on two primary suppliers, fostering stability and resilience in the essential agricultural resource.
- Food Security: By developing and implementing cutting-edge technologies to increase fertilizer
 efficiency and agricultural productivity, we play a vital role in promoting food security and environmental
 sustainability for future generations.
- 4. Carbon Removal: We endeavor to develop one of the world's largest carbon capture projects, leveraging enhanced rock weathering to sequester atmospheric carbon dioxide ("CO₂"), combat climate change, and promote a sustainable future.

The principal activity of the Group is the production and sale of its multi-nutrient potassium fertilizers marketed in Brazil under the brands K Forte[®] and Low-Carbon Specialty Fertilizer Products, and internationally as Super Greensand[®] ("the Products"). Verde operates in the state of Minas Gerais, Brazil.

Q2 2025 HIGHLIGHTS

Operational and Financial Highlights

- Verde's sales volume in Q2 2025 was 80,354 tons; a 6% reduction compared to Q2 2024, which generated \$4.8 million in revenue during the quarter.
- Gross margin excluding freight was 58% during the quarter, compared to Q2 2024 gross margin of 55%.
- Sales and Marketing expenses in Q2 2025 were -\$0.9 million, compared to -\$1.0 million in Q2 2024.
- Positive operating cash inflow of \$0.2 million was recorded during the quarter, compared to -\$0.3 million cash outflow in Q2 2024.
- EBITDA before non-cash events was -\$0.2 million in Q2 2025, compared to nil in Q2 2024.
- Net loss in Q2 2025 was -\$2.4 million, compared to a -\$2.6 million loss in Q2 2024.
- Cash of \$2.4 million in Q2 2025 compared to \$2.7 million in Q2 2024. Short-term receivables in the quarter were \$8.2 million compared to \$12.8 million in Q2 2024.
- The Group successfully completed the renegotiation of short-term and long-term loans in Q2 2025, with approximately 99.5% of loans classified as long-term versus 19.8% prior to the renegotiation. Short-term loans totaled \$0.2 million in the guarter, compared to \$22.9 million in Q2 2024.

Sustainability Highlights

• Product sold in Q2 2025 has the potential to capture up to 9,640 tons of carbon dioxide ("CO₂") from the atmosphere via Enhanced Rock Weathering ("ERW").¹ The potential net amount of carbon captured is estimated at 6,890 tons of CO₂. In addition to the carbon removal potential, Q2 2025 sales avoided the emissions of 4,102 tons of CO₂e, by substituting potassium chloride ("KCI") fertilizers.² Combining the potential carbon removal and carbon emissions avoided by the use of the product since the start of production in 2018, Verde's total potential impact stands at 315,564 tons of CO₂.³

¹ The carbon capture potential of Verde's products, through Enhanced Rock Weathering (ERW), is 120 kg CO₂e per ton of K Forte®. For further information, see "<u>Verde's Products Remove Carbon Dioxide From the Air"</u>.

² K Forte® is a fertilizer produced in Brazil using national raw materials. Its production process has low energy consumption from renewable sources and, consequently, a low environmental and GHG emissions footprint. Whereas the high carbon footprint of KCl results from a complex production process, involving extraction, concentration, and granulation of KCl, in addition to the long transportation distances to Brazil, given that 95% of the KCl consumed in the country is imported. 12Mt of K Forte® is equivalent to 2Mt of KCl in K2O content. Emissions avoided are calculated as the difference between the weighted average emissions for KCl suppliers to produce, deliver, and apply their product in each customer's city and the emissions determined according to K Forte®'s Life Cycle Assessment for its production, delivery, and application in each customer's city.

³ From 2018 to Q2 2025, the Group has sold 2.3 million tons of Product, which can potentially remove up to 251,734 tons of CO₂. Additionally, this amount of Product could potentially avoid up to 63,829 tons of CO₂ emissions.

Q2 2025 HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

6,368 tons of chloride have been prevented from being applied into soils in Q2 2025, by farmers who
used the Product in lieu of KCl fertilizers.⁴ A total of 182,002 tons of chloride has been prevented from
being applied into soil by Verde's customers since the Group started production.⁵

Q2 2025 IN REVIEW

Market Analysis

In Q2 2025, Brazil's agricultural input sector continued to navigate the lingering effects of a prolonged downturn that began in 2022. High indebtedness among farmers and distributors, combined with limited access to credit and adverse market dynamics, led to cautious purchasing behavior. Many agribusinesses remain engaged in debt renegotiation processes — either judicial or informal — while suppliers across the chain have tightened credit policies and prioritized liquidity.⁶

Despite this challenging backdrop, certain indicators signaled a possible shift in market dynamics. Potash prices, particularly for potassium chloride (KCI), remained stable and showed a modest upward trend throughout the quarter.⁷

⁴ Verde's Product is a salinity and chloride-free replacement for KCl fertilizers. Potassium chloride is composed of approximately 46% of chloride, which can have biocidal effects when excessively applied to soils. According to Heide Hermary (Effects of some synthetic fertilizers on the soil ecosystem, 2007), applying 1 pound of potassium chloride to the soil is equivalent to applying 1 gallon of Clorox bleach, with regard to killing soil microorganisms. Soil microorganisms play a crucial role in agriculture by capturing and storing carbon in the soil, making a significant contribution to the global fight against climate change.

 $^{^5}$ 1 ton of Product (10% K₂O) has 0.1 tons of K₂O, which is equivalent to 0.17 tons of potassium chloride (60% K₂O), containing 0.08 tons of chloride.

⁶ Source: Lack of Credit Challenges Brazil's Agricultural Inputs Market, AgriBrasilis, July 23, 2025. Available at: https://agribrasilis.com/2025/07/23/credit-access-agricultural-inputs/.

⁷ Source: Acerto Limited.

Q2 2025 IN REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Like Verde, other players in the sector adopted measures to safeguard operations and improve resilience. Companies face a combination of climate-related delays, lower technology adoption, and farmer cost containment. Many have launched debt restructuring efforts to reduce short-term liabilities, preserve liquidity, and secure more sustainable financial terms. These actions reinforce a sector-wide emphasis on cost discipline, credit selectivity, and long-term stability. Verde maintained a conservative commercial strategy throughout the quarter, limiting sales exposure to higher-risk clients.

Macroeconomic Conditions

The macroeconomic environment in Brazil remained restrictive during Q2 2025. The SELIC rate stood at 15.00% at the end of the quarter and remained unchanged in the following month⁹— still among the highest real interest rates globally. These financing conditions continue to constrain credit availability for rural producers and delay investments in agricultural inputs. Projections suggest that the SELIC will remain at current levels through the end of 2025¹⁰, while JP Morgan foresees it to gradually decrease to 10.75% by the end of 2026.¹¹

Inflation forecasts for 2025 and 2026 stand at 5.10% and 4.40% ¹², respectively, suggesting a cautiously optimistic outlook that Brazil's macroeconomic environment may be on a path toward stabilization in the medium term. Although working capital remains tight for many farmers, especially during the critical period for purchasing inputs such as fertilizers, the industry has adapted by shifting payment terms to post-harvest settlements, typically between 9 and 12 months. This practice, while standard in the agricultural sector, requires careful management of cash flow and credit exposure across the supply chain.

⁸ Source: Lavoro Restructures \$460 Million Debt to Secure Crop Input Supply, The AgriBiz. Available at: https://www.theagribiz.com/international/lavoro-restructures-460-million-debt-to-secure-crop-input-supply/.

⁹ As of June 30, 2025. Source: Brazilian Central Bank

¹⁰ As of June 30, 2025. Source: <u>Brazilian Central Bank</u>

¹¹ Source: J.P. Morgan, COPOM Preview, Latin America Emerging Markets Research, August 5, 2025.

¹² As of June 30, 2025. Source: Brazilian Central Bank

Q2 2025 IN REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Global political developments involving key Brazilian trading partners, along with ongoing discussions around taxation and regulation, have introduced some uncertainty for farmers considering long-term investments. In response, many are taking a more conservative approach, prioritizing essential inputs and maintaining financial discipline. While this cautious sentiment has moderated short-term fertilizer demand, it also reflects a broader focus on operational efficiency and strategic resource allocation. As greater clarity emerges around policy and market dynamics, purchasing activity may begin to recover.¹³

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table provides information on selected operating results for the past eight fiscal quarters. All values are expressed in Canadian Dollars (\$'000).

	Jun 30, 2025	Mar 31, 2025	Dec 31, 2024	Sep 30, 2024
Tons Sold '000	80	48	48	101
Revenue	4,800	2,852	2,888	7,161
Net (Loss) / Income after tax	(2,426)	(3,781)	(2,831)	(2,336)
Basic (Loss) / Earnings per share	(0.046)	(0.072)	(0.238)	(0.044)
Diluted (Loss) / Earnings per share	(0.046)	(0.072)	(0.238)	(0.044)
Total Assets	74,620	75,384	72,017	80,160
Current Liabilities	3,467	2,905	2,059	29,752
Non-current Liabilities	45,374	44,006	39,623	15,533

	Jun 30, 2024	Mar 31, 2024	Dec 31, 2023	Sep 30, 2023
Tons sold '000	85	85	105	108
Revenue	6,480	5,068	7,058	9,375
Net (loss) / Income after tax	(2,639)	(4,752)	(2,648)	(3,464)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share	(0.050)	(0.090)	(0.050)	(0.066)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share	(0.050)	(0.090)	(0.050)	(0.063)
Total Assets	81,465	91,612	96,172	95,501
Current Liabilities	25,913	28,629	39,956	10,974
Non-current Liabilities	18,270	20,424	10,710	36,544

¹³ "US sanctions could cause chaos on Latam farms run on Russian fertilizers," Reuters, July 21, 2025. Available at: https://www.reuters.com/world/americas/us-sanctions-could-cause-chaos-latam-farms-run-russian-fertilizers-2025-07-21

EXTERNAL FACTORS

Revenue and costs are affected by external factors including changes in the exchange rates between the C\$ and R\$ along with fluctuations in potassium chloride spot CFR Brazil, agricultural commodities prices, interest rates, among other factors. For further details, please refer to the Q2 2025 Year in Review section.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table provides information on the three-month period ended June 30, 2025, as compared to the three-month period ended June 30, 2024. All amounts are in CAD \$'000.

	3 months ended	3 months ended	6 months ended	6 months ended
Jur	n 30, 2025	Jun 30, 2024 .		Jun 30, 2024
Tons sold '000	80	85	128	170
Average Revenue per ton sold \$	60	76	60	68
Average Production cost per ton sold \$	(16)	(21)	(16)	(21)
Average Gross Profit per ton sold \$	44	55	44	47
Gross Margin	73%	72%	73%	70%
Revenue	4,800	6,480	7,652	11,548
Production costs ⁽¹⁾	(1,316)	(1,815)	(2,073)	(3,486)
Gross Profit	3,484	4,665	5,579	8,062
Gross Margin	73%	72%	73%	70%
Sales and marketing expenses	(891)	(979)	(1,742)	(1,949)
Product delivery freight expenses	(1,733)	(2,541)	(2,848)	(4,137)
General and administrative expenses	(1,048)	(1,058)	(2,098)	(2,414)
Allowance for expected credit losses	6	(87)	(507)	(232)
EBITDA ⁽²⁾	(182)		(1,616)	(670)
Share Based and Bonus Payments (Non-Cast Event) ⁽³⁾	h (72)	(265)	(233)	(2,042)
Depreciation, Amortisation and P/L on disposal or plant and equipment (3)	of (772)	(802)	(1,546)	(1,721)
Operating Profit after non-cash events	(1,026)	(1,067)	(3,395)	(4,433)
Interest Income/Expense (4)	(1,394)	(1,564)	(2,802)	(2,941)
Net Profit before tax	(2,420)	(2,631)	(6,197)	(7,374)
Income tax (5)	(6)	(8)	(10)	(17)
Net Profit	(2,426)	(2,639)	(6,207)	(7,391)

^{(1) -} Non GAAP measure

^{(2) –} Included in General and Administrative expenses in financial statements

^{(3) –} Included in General and Administrative expenses and Cost of Sales in financial statements

^{(4) –} Please see Summary of Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings notes

^{(5) –} Please see Income Tax notes

OPERATION AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

Sales Performance

In Q2 2025, revenue from sales declined by 6%, accompanied by a 21% decrease in the average revenue per ton compared to Q2 2024. Excluding freight expenses (FOB price), the average revenue per ton fell by 17%, primarily driven by the devaluation of the Brazilian Real by 9.2% and a reduction in sales of specialty products, which decreased from 18% to 9% of the sales mix. The shift reflects farmers' increasing preference for lower value-added products, as many continue to face restricted cash flows.

Verde maintains a rigorous credit approval process for customers purchasing specialty fertilizers, due to the inclusion of third-party raw materials in these products. This more stringent evaluation helps safeguard operational continuity and mitigates risks associated with the fulfillment of purchase agreements.

The Group reported a net loss of -\$2.4 million in Q2 2025, compared to a net loss of -\$2.6 million in Q2 2024. The result was primarily impacted by interest expenses of -\$1.4 million and depreciation of -\$0.8 million. The year-over-year improvement of \$0.2 million was mainly due to a reduction in non-cash expenses related to stock options granted by the Group, when compared to the same period in the previous year.

Basic loss per share was -\$0.04 for Q2 2025, compared to a basic loss per share of -\$0.05 for Q2 2024.

Production costs¹⁴

The average cost per ton decreased by 24% in Q2 2025, primarily due to renegotiated supplier contracts, a reduction in operational headcount, and an 9.2% devaluation of the Brazilian Real, alongside a lower proportion of specialty product orders compared to regular products.

Production costs include all direct costs from mining, processing, and the addition of other nutrients to the Product, such as sulphur and boron. It also includes the logistics costs from the mine to the plant and related salaries.

¹⁴ Verde's production costs and sales price are based on the following assumptions:

Micronutrients added to the product increase its production cost, rendering K Forte® less expensive to produce.

Production costs vary based on packaging type, with bulk being less expensive than Jumbo Bags.

Plant 1 produces K Forte® Jumbo Bags and Low-Carbon Specialty Fertilizer Products, while Plant 2 exclusively produces K Forte® Bulk. Therefore, Plant 2's production costs are lower than Plant 1's costs.

OPERATION AND FINANCIAL RESULTS (CONTINUED)

Verde's continued focus on cost reduction has allowed the Group to maintain existing gross margins despite inflationary pressures, customer credit restrictions, and commodity price fluctuations.

SALES, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

SG&A represents a non-operating segment that includes corporate and administrative functions, essential for supporting the Group's operating segments.

Sales Expenses

CAD \$'000	3 months ended June 30, 2025	3 months ended June 30, 2024	6 months ended Jun 30, 2025	6 months ended Jun 30, 2024
Sales and marketing expenses	(756)	(896)	(1,524)	(1,733)
Fees paid to independent sales agents	(135)	(83)	(218)	(216)
Total	(891)	(979)	(1,742)	(1,949)

Sales and marketing expenses cover salaries for employees, car rentals, domestic travel in Brazil, hotel accommodations, and Product promotion at marketing events.

As part of the Group's sales and marketing strategy, Verde compensates its independent sales agents through commissions. Fees paid to independent sales agents increased by 63% in Q2 2025, despite stable or lower sales volumes, reflecting adjustments in commission structure.

Product delivery freight expenses

Expenses decreased by 32% in Q2 2025 compared to the same period last year, due to a CIF volume reduction presented this year. The volume sold as CIF (Cost Insurance and Freight) in Q2 2025 represented 69% of total sales, compared to 81% in Q2 2024. The Group achieved a reduction in average freight costs per ton for products sold on a CIF basis, to \$31 in Q2 2025 from \$37 in the comparable period of the previous year. The 15% decrease in freight costs can primarily be attributed to a reduction in the percentage of sales made to regions that are more distant from Verde's production facilities.

SALES, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (CONTINUED):

General and Administrative Expenses

CAD \$'000	3 months ended			
	Jun 30, 2025	Jun 30, 2024	Jun 30, 2025	Jun 30, 2024
General administrative expenses	(745)	(595)	(1,482)	(1,401)
Legal, professional, consultancy and audit costs	(176)	(303)	(361)	(643)
IT/Software expenses	(118)	(147)	(234)	(329)
Taxes and licenses fees	(9)	(13)	(21)	(41)
Total	(1,048)	(1,058)	(2,098)	(2,414)

General and administrative expenses comprise office-related costs, rent, bank charges, insurance, foreign exchange variations, and remuneration for executives, members of the Board of Directors, administrative personnel, and international sales conducted through the holding group. These expenses increased from \$595 in Q2 2024 to \$745 in Q2 2025, primarily due to a higher volume of international sales carried out by the holding Group in the previous year. As these transactions do not represent the Group's core operating activities, the associated revenue is not recognized as operating income but rather offset against general and administrative expenses.

Legal, professional and audit costs include fees along with accountancy, audit and regulatory costs. Consultancy fees encompass consultants employed in Brazil, such as accounting services, patent processes, lawyer's fees and regulatory consultants. This showed a decrease of 42% compared to Q2 2024 due to expenses related to external consulting services.

Allowance for expected credit losses

Allowance for expected credit losses decreased from \$0.09 million in 2024 to nil in 2025. This was mainly due to the reversal of previously recorded provisions following a renegotiation with a delinquent customer.

Share Based, Equity and Bonus Payments (Non-Cash Event)

Share Based, Equity and Bonus Payments (Non-Cash Events) encompass expenses associated with stock options granted to employees and directors, as well as equity compensation and non-cash bonuses awarded to key management personnel. In Q2 2025, the costs associated with share-based payments decrease to -\$0.1 million compared to -\$0.3 million for the same period last year. This decrease was primarily due to a lower number of options issued in 2025 compared to the previous year.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOWS

For additional details see the consolidated statements of cash flows for the quarters ended June 30, 2025, and June 30, 2024, in the quarterly financial statements.

Cash received from / (used for):	3 months ended	3 months ended	6 months ended	6 months ended
CAD \$'000	Jun 30, 2025	Jun 30, 2024	Jun 30, 2025	Jun 30, 2024
Operating activities	203	(312)	(682)	(3,171)
Investing activities	(76)	1,596	(144)	1,327
Financing activities	(9)	(1,963)	(52)	(2,735)

On June 30, 2025, the Group held cash of \$2.4 million a decrease of \$0.3 million on the same period in 2024. In addition to cash, the Group had \$8.2 million in short-term receivables, bringing the total of cash and receivables to \$10.6 million in Q2 2025.

Operating activities

In agricultural sales, credit transactions are common due to the cyclical nature of farming income, which sees fluctuations with seasonal highs during harvests and lows during planting. This cycle necessitates that farmers have access to essential inputs like seeds, fertilizers, and pesticides ahead of their selling season. To accommodate this, credit terms are offered, allowing farmers to procure these inputs in advance and align their payments with their revenue cycle.

Verde's approach to credit in the agricultural sector reflects a deep understanding of these operational nuances, resulting in a substantial portfolio of receivables. The Group's normal credit term is 30 to 120 days upon shipment, depending on the period of the year, tailored to the specific needs of each farmer, considering the crop cycle, creditworthiness, and other key factors. This strategy ensures farmers have the necessary resources for each planting season, while Verde secures its financial interests through aligned payment schedules.

In Q2 2025, net cash provided by operating activities was \$0.2 million, compared to net cash used of -\$0.3 million in Q2 2024. In the second quarter of 2025, the Group presented an improvement in operating cash flow, mainly reflecting lower foreign exchange losses, a reduction in interest payments, and greater efficiency in managing operating liabilities.

Cash and trade receivables decreased by 32%, reaching \$10.6 million in Q2 2025, compared to \$15.5 million in Q2 2024.

Cash used in investing activities amounted to -\$0.1 million in Q2 2025, compared to \$1.6 million in cash inflows from investing activities in Q2 2024. The variance is primarily attributable to the redemption of financial investments that occurred in the prior-year period.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Loan Renegotiation

Verde's debt restructuring — renegotiated with over 97.5% of its creditors — has significantly reduced its short-term obligations. Among total debt, 92.2% were classified as debt owed to adherent creditors and 5.3% as debt owed to non-adherent creditors.

Although debt owed to non-adherent creditors only comprised a small portion of total debt, the Group experienced a *significant reduction in the principal owed to this group (75%), equating to approximately R\$7.0 million*. The interest rate on this category of debt was also significantly reduced to the Taxa Referencial (TR)¹⁵, currently around 1.36% per year. The grace period and repayment term for debt associated with non-adherent creditors are 19 months on both principal and interest (starting from the court-approved debt renegotiation date of April 2025) and 108 months following the grace period, respectively.

The terms applied to the majority (92.2%) of total debt, owed to adherent creditors, are as follows:

- 1. Grace Period: 18 months on both principal and interest, starting from October 2024;16
- 2. Repayment Term: Debt to be amortized over 108 months; and
- 3. Principal Repayment Schedule:
 - 10% repaid between months 19 and 54;
 - 30% between months 55 and 90; and
 - 60% between months 91 and 126.

Interest accrues at *Certificado de Depósito Interbancário* ("**CDI**") + 1.25% for three years and increases to CDI + 2.5% thereafter.

The current split of short-term and long-term loans are as follows:

_

¹⁵ Referance rate.

¹⁶ With the exception of a symbolic monthly payment of R\$100,000 from May 2025 onwards.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Loans CAD \$'000	Before renegotiation	After renegotiation
Short-term loans	37,953	227
Long-term loans	9,371	45,195
Total	47,324	45,472

The Group is now well positioned to weather ongoing macroeconomic volatility while preparing for a potential rebound in sector activity in H2 2025.¹⁷

Financial position

As of June 30, 2025, Verde held cash of \$2.4 million, compared to \$2.7 million at the end of Q2 2024. Short-term receivables recorded during the quarter were \$8.2 million. The total cash and short-term receivables were \$10.6 million in Q2 2025.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of June 30, 2025, the Group's total loan balance was \$45.5 million. Verde's average current loan rate is 17.0% per annum.

Detailed information on the interest-bearing loans and borrowings can be found in the Group's Financial Statements.

LEASES

As of June 30, 2025, the Group's total Right-of-use asset balance and lease liability was null.

Detailed information on the leases can be found in the Group's Financial Statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCING

The Group has not entered into any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

¹⁷ See press release "Verde Announces Court Approval of Debt Renegotiation Agreement". Available at: https://investor.verde.ag/verde-announces-court-approval-of-debt-renegotiation-agreement/

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Board of Directors determines, as required, the degree to which it is appropriate to use financial instruments and hedging techniques to mitigate risks. The main risks for which such instruments may be appropriate are foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk, each of which is discussed below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's cash resources are mainly held in Brazilian Real. Exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect the Group's financial position and results. The Group's financial results are reported in Canadian Dollars and its revenues, costs and finance costs are primarily incurred in Brazilian Real.

The appreciation of Brazilian Real against the Canadian Dollar could increase the actual revenues and operating costs of the Group's operations and materially affect the results presented in the Group's financial statements.

Currency exchange fluctuations may also materially adversely affect the Group's future cash flows from operations, its results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. The Group has a general policy of not hedging against foreign currency risks. The Group manages foreign currency risk by regularly reviewing the balances held in currencies other than the functional currency to match expected expenditure in foreign currency.

The Group had the following short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents in various currencies including its presentational currency. The amounts are stated in Canadian Dollar equivalents:

Currency (\$'000)	31 Jun 2025	31 Jun 2024
Canadian Dollars	73	511
Brazilian Reais	2,269	2,209
American Dollars	25	-
Singaporean Dollars	13	-
Total	2,380	2,720

The Brazilian Reais deposits are held as interbank deposit certificates, with no maturity date and track Brazil's short-term interest rate (SELIC), which is currently 15.00%.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis showing a 10% weakening/strengthening of the Brazilian Real against the Canadian Dollar with all other variables held constant is set out below. 10% represents managements' assessment of the reasonable possible exposure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

	Equity	Equity (\$'000)	
	June 30 2025	June 30 2024	
10% weakening of Brazilian Real	(3,905)	(2,903)	
10% strengthening of Brazilian Real	3,195	2,375	

Liquidity risk

The Group has relied on revenue generated from the sale of Product, along with shareholder funding and long-term loans to finance its operations. The liquidity risk is significant and is managed by control over expenditure and cash resources. The Group has borrowings, trade, and other payables with a maturity of less than one year with borrowings and a provision greater than one year. Further details of the liquidity position are explained in note 2.1 regarding going concern.

Interest rate risk

The Group's policy is to retain its surplus funds in the most advantageous term of deposit available up to twelve month's maximum duration.

The Group's policy is to make conservative investments, typically linked to the interest rate set by the Brazilian government (SELIC). Variations in this government interest rate can affect financial expenses, as the group's loans are also tied to the same interest rate.

The Group's average current loan rate is 17.0% per annum. The Brazilian Government long term bond rate as of 30 June 2025 was 15.00% per annum. Up to the date of the financial statements issuance, the rate has remained at 15.00%, and the Central Bank reaffirms the expectation of a decrease in the long-term bond rate. As such, Management does not understand that it is reasonably possible that a significant increase in interest rate is expected for the foreseeable future.

Financial assets

The floating rate financial assets comprise interest earning bank deposits at rates set by reference to the prevailing SOFR or equivalent to the relevant country.

Fair values

In the Directors' opinion there is no material difference between the book value and fair value of any of the Group's financial instruments. The non-current loans and financing bear interest over floating interest rates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Classes of financial instruments

The classes of financial instruments are the same as the line items included on the face of the statement of financial position and have been analyzed in more detail in the notes to the financial statements. All the Group's financial assets are categorized as loans and receivables and all financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations that are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations had no material effect on the profit or loss or financial position of the Group.

No standards issued but not yet effective have been adopted early.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about such judgements and estimates is contained in the accounting policies and/or the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Areas of judgement and sources of estimation or uncertainty that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as follows.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements

Impairment of non-current assets:

The Directors have assessed whether there are any indicators of impairment in respect of mineral property costs and property, plant and equipment totaling \$18.205 and \$40,958, respectively. In making this assessment they have considered the Group's business plan which includes resource estimates, future processing capacity, future exchange rates, the forward market and longer-term price outlook and assumptions regarding weighted average cost of capital. Resource estimates have been based on the most recently filed pre-feasibility study NI 43 101 report and its opportunities economic model which includes resource estimates without conversion of its inferred resources. Management's estimates of these factors are subject to risk and uncertainties, including but not limited to the all the risks and uncertainty listed in this document, affecting the recoverability of the Group's mineral property costs. Moreover, the Directors also considered external sources of information, including analysis of the Group's market value, when assessing for impairment indicators.

Estimates

Ore reserve and mineral resource estimates

Ore reserves and mineral resource estimates are estimates of the amount of ore that can be economically and legally extracted from the Group's mining properties. Such reserves and mineral resource estimates and changes to these may impact the Group's reported financial position and results, in the following way:

 The carrying value of exploration and evaluation assets, mine properties, property, plant and equipment may be affected due to changes in estimated future cash flows

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

- Depreciation and amortization charges in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
 may change where such charges are determined using the units of production method, or where the useful
 life of the related assets change
 - a) Capitalized stripping costs recognized in the statement of financial position, as either part of mine properties or inventory or charged to profit or loss, may change due to changes in stripping ratios
 - b) Provisions for rehabilitation and environmental provisions may change where reserve estimate changes affect expectations about when such activities will occur and the associated cost of these activities
- The recognition and carrying value of deferred income tax assets may change due to changes in the judgements regarding the existence of such assets and in estimates of the likely recovery of such assets.

The Group estimates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological and technical data on the size, depth, shape and grade of the ore body and suitable production techniques and recovery rates. Such an analysis requires complex geological judgements to interpret the data. The estimation of recoverable reserves is based upon factors such as estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements and production costs, along with geological assumptions and judgements made in estimating the size and grade of the ore body.

The Group estimates and reports ore reserves and mineral resources in line with the principles contained in the pre-feasibility study NI 43 101 report.

Share-based payments

The Group charges the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with the fair value of share options issued. This charge is not based on historical cost but is derived based on assumptions input into an option pricing model. The model requires management to make several assumptions as to future events, including: an estimate of the average future hold period of issued stock options before exercise, expiry or cancellation; future volatility of the Group's share price in the expected hold period (using historical volatility as a reference); and the appropriate risk-free rate of interest. The resulting value calculated is not necessarily the value that the holder of the option could receive in an arm's length transaction, given there is no market for the options, and they are not transferable. The value derived from the option-pricing model is highly subjective and dependent entirely upon the input assumptions made.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Mine closure provision

The ultimate rehabilitation costs are uncertain, and cost estimates can vary in response to many factors, including estimates of the extent and costs of rehabilitation activities, technological changes, regulatory changes, cost increases as compared to the inflation rates (based on Brazilian inflation index (IPCA)), and changes in discount rates (based on risk free rate, based on Brazilian government bond rates). These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided. Therefore, significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for mine rehabilitation. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provisions established which would affect future financial result. The provision at reporting date represents management's best estimate of the present value of the future rehabilitation costs required.

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Assumptions about the generation of future taxable are based on forecast cash flows from operations (which are impacted by production and sales volumes, selling prices, reserves, operating costs, closure and rehabilitation costs, capital expenditure and other capital management transactions). To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realise the net deferred tax a

the ability of the Group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the reporting date could be impacted.

In addition, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates could limit the ability of the Group to obtain tax deductions in future periods.

Management's Report on Internal Controls

Disclosure Controls and Procedures ("DC&P")

As of June 30, 2025, the CEO and the CFO evaluated the design and operation of the Group's DC&P. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the Group's DC&P was effective as at June 30, 2025.

Internal control over financial reporting ("ICFR")

Based on the evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of the Group's ICFR, the CEO and the CFO concluded that the Group's ICFR was effective as of June 30, 2025.

There have been no changes during the period ended June 30, 2025, that have a material effect on the disclosure controls and procedures or the internal controls over financial reporting.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at the date of this MD&A the following securities are outstanding:

Туре	Number
Ordinary shares	52,669,724
Stock options	4,836,308
Total	57,506,032

RISKS

The Board regularly reviews the risks to which the Group is exposed and ensures through Board Committees and regular reporting that these risks are minimized to the extent possible. The Audit Committee is responsible for the implementation and review of the Group's internal financial controls and risk management systems.

The extraction of natural resources involves a high degree of risk. The following risk factors should be considered in assessing the Group's activities. Should any one or more of these risks occur, it could have a material adverse effect on the business, prospects, assets, financial position, or operating results of the Group. The risks noted below do not necessarily comprise all those faced by the Group.

Additional risks not currently known to the Group or that the Group currently deems would not likely influence an investor's decision to purchase securities of the Group may also impact on the Group's business, prospects, assets, financial position, or operating results.

U.S. Trade Tariff Risk

The recent imposition of additional U.S. tariffs on selected Brazilian exports introduces a new layer of external trade risk for the broader agribusiness sector. Effective August 6, 2025, an extra tariff was levied on various Brazilian goods entering the United States, increasing total tariff rates to as high as 50% for certain products. While some exemptions apply, several key agricultural commodities have been directly impacted. The evolving nature of U.S. trade policy introduces uncertainties that may affect global commodity flows, pricing dynamics, foreign exchange and financial markets. Although Verde has minimal to no direct exposure to U.S. markets—serving an almost entirely domestic customer base—the Company remains vigilant to any indirect effects stemming from macroeconomic shifts or policy responses. Management continues to monitor the situation closely and assess potential implications for Verde's strategic positioning, operational continuity, and financial performance.

Ukraine and Russia conflict risk

The Group is exposed to price risk related to consumables and services. In 2022, prices for electricity, fuel, and other materials, commodities and consumables required for the Group's operations have experienced substantial recent increases associated with global inflation as well as supply chain delivery, further heightened with the Russia-Ukraine conflict. To date, there has not been a significant impact on our operations relating to supply chain availability; however, inflationary increases on energy, fuel, contractor costs and consumables are expected to impact operating costs. The Group has implemented procurement strategies to mitigate the impact and to continue to monitor these risks.

Uncertainty in the estimation of mineral resources and mineral reserves

The estimation of mineral reserves, mineral resources and related grades has a degree of uncertainty. Until such time as the mineral reserves and mineral resources are actually mined and processed, the quantity of grades must be considered as estimates only. The mineral reserve estimates of the Group have been determined or reviewed by an independent consultant and are based on assumed cut-off grades and costs that may prove to be inaccurate. Any material change in these variables may affect the economic outcome of current and future projects.

Mining risks

Mining operations are inherently risky. These operations are subject to all hazards and risks encountered in exploration, development and production. These include but are not limited to formation pressures, seismic activity, rock bursts, fires, power outages, cave-ins, flooding, explosions, and other conditions involved in the drilling and removal of material. Any of these events could result in serious damage to the mine and other infrastructure, damage to life or property, environmental damage and possible legal liability.

The Group has all necessary permits in place to continue with the current operation. As expansion plans progress, the Group will be required to submit revised plans for approval. There can be no guarantee that these revised plans will be agreed to or approved in a timely manner.

The Group's profitability will depend, in part, on the economic returns and actual costs of developing its mining projects, which may differ from the estimates made by the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a failure by counterparties to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount of future cash inflows from financial assets on hand at the reporting date. The Group generates revenue from the sale of products. Where credit is extended to customers this results in trade receivables which may be subject to default. This risk is mitigated by credit control procedures.

In addition, the Group has a credit risk relating to subsidiary investments. The Group expects loans to subsidiaries to be ultimately repaid from trading cash flows to be generated from its mining activities. Consideration is given at each reporting date as to whether the subsidiaries have sufficient liquid assets to repay the loans if demanded in order to determine the probability of default. The Group measures the lifetime expected credit loss by considering all the different recovery strategies and credit loss scenarios. The recovery strategy considered is a repay over time strategy as net trading cash flows are expected to repay the balances. Likely credit losses scenarios are dependent on the operating capability factors inherent in the successful operation of the mine which include the selling price of the products, future costs and availability of capital, operating costs, and tax rates. Sensitivity analysis is performed on the various factors and expected credit losses recognized as appropriate.

Production risk

Production risk relates to the possibility that the Group output levels will be lower than expected. Factors affecting production include adverse weather conditions and failure of equipment and machinery. Mining of the Product continues throughout the year with maximum capacity (within permitted mining limits) during the summer, dry months of the year. Regular inspection and service of equipment and machinery is carried out to ensure they are in full working order.

Expected Market Potential of the Product

The Product is a new product without an established market. Substantial investment may be required to develop the market in Brazil and, if relevant, internationally. Although an established market for potassium-based fertilizers already exists, there is no assurance that the Group's market development efforts will result in the sales of the Product.

Uncertainty of Acquiring Necessary Permits

The Group's current and future operations will require approvals and permits from various federal, state and local governmental authorities, and such operations are and will be governed by laws and regulations governing prospecting, development, mining, production, taxes, labor standards, health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, environmental protection, mine safety and other matters. There is no assurance that delays will not occur in connection with obtaining all necessary renewals of such approvals and permits for the existing operations or additional approvals or permits for any possible future changes to operations. Prior to any development on any of its properties, the Group must receive permits from appropriate governmental authorities. There can be no assurance that the Group will continue to hold all permits necessary to develop or continue operating at any particular property or obtain all the required permits on reasonable terms or in a timely basis. The Group has been successful in obtaining environmental and mining licenses for small scale production and continues to apply for the appropriate licenses to meet future production in line with its expansion plans. Licensing timelines and conditions may change as environmental regulations evolve.

Enhanced Rock Weathering (ERW) Risks:

While Enhanced Rock Weathering (ERW) offers significant potential as a sustainable solution for carbon sequestration and soil health improvement, its application presents several risks that could impact Verde Agritech's operations. The long-term ecological effects of ERW are not fully understood, and there is uncertainty regarding how different soil types and climatic conditions might affect its efficiency and sustainability. The success of ERW also depends heavily on rigorous and ongoing monitoring to ensure that environmental objectives are met without causing unintended harm to local ecosystems. Additionally, as ERW is an emerging technology, regulatory frameworks are still evolving, which could lead to unforeseen compliance costs or operational restrictions in the future. These factors, combined with the challenges of scaling the technology for commercial use, could introduce variability in Verde Agritech's ability to achieve projected outcomes, potentially affecting the Group's overall strategy and financial performance.

Uninsurable Risks

The development and production of mineral properties involves numerous risks including unexpected or unusual geological operating conditions such as rock bursts, cave-ins, fires, flooding and earthquakes. Insurance may not be available to cover all these risks, may only be available at economically unacceptable premiums or may be inadequate to cover any resulting liability. Any uninsured liabilities that arise would have a material adverse effect on the Group's business and results of operations.

Operations in a Foreign Country and Regulatory Requirements

All the Group's properties are located in Brazil and mineral exploration and mining activities as well as project development may be affected in varying degrees by changes in political, social and financial stability, inflation and changes in government regulations relating to the mining industry. Any changes in regulations or shifts in political, social or financial conditions are beyond the control of the Group and may adversely affect its business. Operations may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, environmental legislation and mine safety. Brazil's status as a developing country may make it more difficult for the Group to obtain any financing required for the exploration and development of its properties due to real or perceived increased investment risk.

Currently there are no restrictions on the repatriation from Brazil on the earnings of foreign entities. Capital investments registered with the central bank in Brazil may similarly be repatriated. There can be no assurance that restrictions on repatriation of earnings and capital investments from Brazil will not be imposed in the future.

Competition

The Group competes with other mining companies as well as other companies producing agricultural products, many of which have greater financial and technical resources and experience, particularly with respect to the potash industry and the limited number of mineral opportunities available in South America. Competition in the mining industry is primarily for properties which can be developed and can produce economically; the technical expertise to find, develop, and operate such properties; the labor to operate the properties; and the capital for the purpose of funding such properties. In addition, many competitors not only explore for and mine potash, but conduct refining and marketing operations on a world-wide basis.

Such competition may result in the Group being unable to acquire desired properties on terms acceptable to the Group, to recruit or retain qualified employees or to acquire the capital necessary to fund its operations and develop its properties. The Group's inability to compete with other mining companies for these resources would have a material adverse effect on the Group's business and results of operations.

The Group also competes with other potash mining and/or marketing companies, many of which have greater marketing, financial and technical resources, and experience, in exporting and marketing its potash or potassium-based products. The Group is vulnerable to increases in the supply of potash beyond market demand either from the opening of new potash mines or the expansion of existing potash mines by the Group's competitors, which could depress prices and have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, financial condition and results of operation.

Title Matters

While the Group has diligently investigated title to all mineral properties and, to the best of its knowledge, title to all properties is in good standing; this should not be construed as a guarantee of title. The properties may be affected by undetected defects in title, such as the reduction in size of the mineral claims and other third-party claims affecting the Group's priority rights, at the discretion of the ANM. The Group's interests in mineral properties are comprised of exclusive rights under government licenses and contracts to conduct operations in the nature of exploration and, in due course if warranted, development and mining, on the license areas. Maintenance of such rights is subject to ongoing compliance with the terms of such licenses and contracts.

Uncertainty of Additional Capital

In the past, the Group has relied on sales of equity securities to meet its capital requirements. The Group plans to use predominately production revenue and debt to cover costs going forward. There is no assurance that the Group will be successful in obtaining the required financing.

The ability of the Group to arrange additional financing in the future will depend, in part, on the prevailing capital market conditions as well as the business performance of the Group. The development of the Group's projects may require substantial additional financing. Failure to obtain such financing may result in delaying or indefinite postponement of exploration, development, or production on any or all of the Group's projects or even a loss of property interest. There can be no assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that, if available, the terms of such financing will be favorable to the Group. If the Group, through the issuance of securities from treasury, raises additional financing, control of the Group may change, and security holders may suffer additional dilution. See "Risk Factors – Dilution".

Government Royalties

The Federal Government of Brazil collects royalties on mineral production, with up to half of such royalties being paid to surface rights owners. The current Brazilian federal royalty applicable to fertilizer production is a 2% Financial Compensation for Mineral Exploration ("CFEM", from *Compensação Financeira pela Exploração Mineral*) for Glauconitic Siltstone. This level and the level of any other royalties, payable to the Brazilian government in respect of the production of minerals may be varied at any time as a result of changing legislation, which could materially adversely affect the Group's results of operations.

Market Factors and Volatility of Commodity Prices

The Group's future profitability and long-term viability will depend, in large part, on the global market price of minerals produced and their marketability. The marketability of mineralized material, which may be acquired or discovered by the Group, will be affected by numerous factors beyond the control of the Group. These factors include market fluctuations in the prices of minerals sought, which are highly volatile, inflation, consumption patterns, speculative activities, international political and economic trends, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, production costs and rates of production. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted but may result in the Group not receiving an adequate return on invested capital. Prices of certain minerals have fluctuated widely, particularly in recent years, and are affected by numerous factors beyond the control of the Group. Future mineral prices cannot be accurately predicted. A severe decline in the price of a mineral being produced or expected to be produced by the Group would have a material adverse effect on the Group and could result in the suspension of mining operations by the Group.

Protection of Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

The success and competitive position of Verde Agritech are significantly dependent on the Group's ability to protect its intellectual property and proprietary rights. The Group relies on a combination of patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, and confidentiality agreements to safeguard its innovative fertilizer products, production technologies, and operational processes. The inability to secure these rights, or any failure to enforce them, could enable competitors to duplicate the Group's products and technologies, potentially eroding its market share, diminishing its brand value, and adversely affecting its financial performance. The Group seeks to protect and defend its intellectual property and, where appropriate, obtain additional protections.

Environmental, Health, and Safety Regulations

Verde operates within a regulatory environment that prioritizes the protection of the environment, the health and safety of workers, and the well-being of the communities around its operations. Compliance with these extensive laws and regulations is fundamental to the Group's operations. These include regulations governing waste disposal, environmental conservation, worker safety, and mine development. Any failure to comply could result in severe consequences such as fines, permit revocations, and operational suspensions. Moreover, evolving regulations may impose additional compliance costs or operational constraints, emphasizing the need for Verde to continually adapt and integrate responsible environmental, health, and safety practices into all aspects of its operations.

The Group's subsidiary Verde Fertilizantes holds ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certifications, evidencing its dedication to quality management and environmental responsibility. The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standards in its operational processes and environmental stewardship.

Climate Change

Climate change represents an escalating risk worldwide, manifested through both transitional and physical challenges. Transitional risks include regulatory changes, carbon pricing mechanisms, and shifts in market demand towards more sustainable practices. Physical risks encompass acute events like floods and droughts, as well as chronic impacts such as altered precipitation patterns and water scarcity. These changes could impact the Group's supply chain, affect its operational efficiency, and impose additional costs for adaptation and resilience-building measures. In response, Verde continues to closely monitor the evolving landscape of climate-related regulations and stakeholder expectations, proactively adapting its strategies to mitigate the risks of climate change.

The effects of climate change extend to the agricultural sector, directly impacting the Group's end customers. Adverse weather conditions can affect growing seasons, crop yields, and water availability, challenging food security and the demand for agricultural inputs like the Group's potassic fertilizers. The ability of farmers to adapt to these changes is crucial, and Verde is committed to supporting its customers through this transition by providing innovative and sustainable fertilizer solutions that enhance crop resilience and contribute to a more sustainable agricultural future.

Cyclical Industry

The market for potash tends to move in cycles. Periods of high demand, increasing profits and high-capacity utilization, led to new plant investment and increased production. This growth increases supply until the market is over-saturated, leading to declining prices and declining capacity utilization until the cycle repeats. This cyclicality in prices can result in supply/demand imbalances and pressures on potash prices and profit margins, which may impact the Group's financial results, and common share prices. The potash industry is dependent on conditions in the economy generally and the agriculture sector. The agricultural sector can be affected by adverse weather conditions, cost of inputs, commodity prices, animal diseases, the availability of government support programs and other uncertainties that may affect sales of fertilizer products.

Dependence on Key Executives and Technical Personnel

The Group is currently dependent on the services of a relatively small management team. Locating mineral deposits and successfully bringing them into production in Brazil depends on a number of factors, not the least of which is the technical skill of the personnel involved. Due to the relatively small size of the Group, the loss of members of the management team or the Group's inability to attract and retain additional highly skilled employees may materially adversely affect its business and future operations. The Group does not currently carry any "key man" life insurance on any of its executives. The non-executive directors of the Group devote only part of their time to the affairs of the Group.

History of Earnings

The Group generated operating revenue of \$4,800 and achieved an operating loss of \$2,426 for the period ended June 30, 2025. Management expects that the Group will be able to generate net profits going forward. However, there is no assurance the Group will generate sufficient earnings, operate profitably, or provide a return on investment in the future.

Dilution

To the extent the Group should, in future, issue any additional warrants, additional options, convertible securities or other similar rights, the holders of such securities will have the opportunity to profit from a rise in the market price of the Ordinary Shares with a resulting dilution in the equity interest of any persons who become holders of Ordinary Shares. The Group's ability to obtain additional financing during the period may be adversely affected and the existence of the rights may have an adverse effect on the price of the Ordinary Shares. The holders of warrants, options and other rights may exercise such securities at a time when the Group would, in all likelihood, be able to obtain any needed capital by a new offering of securities on terms more favorable than those provided by the outstanding rights.

In some circumstances, the increase in the number of Ordinary Shares issued and outstanding and the possibility of sales of such shares may have a depressive effect on the price of the Ordinary Shares. In addition, as a result of such additional Ordinary Shares, the voting power of the Group's existing shareholders may be diluted.

Future Sales of Ordinary Shares by Existing Shareholders

Sales of a large number of Ordinary Shares in the public markets, or the potential for such sales, could decrease the trading price of the Ordinary Shares and could impair the Group's ability to raise capital through future sales of Ordinary Shares.

Conflicts of Interest

Directors of the Group are or may become directors of other reporting companies or have significant shareholdings in other mining companies and, to the extent that such other companies may participate in ventures in which the Group may participate, the directors of the Group may have a conflict of interest in negotiating and concluding terms respecting the extent of such participation. The Group and its directors attempt to minimize such conflicts. In the event that such a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the directors of the Group, a director who has such a conflict will abstain from voting for or against the approval of such participation or such terms. In appropriate cases the Group will establish a special committee of independent directors to review a matter in which several directors, or management, may have a conflict. The directors of the Group are required to act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Group. In determining whether or not the Group will participate in a particular program and the interest therein to be acquired by it, the directors will primarily consider the potential benefits to the Group, the degree of risk to which the Group may be exposed and its financial position at that time.

The Cerrado Verde Project is Managed by a Subsidiary

The material operating subsidiary for the Cerrado Verde Project is Verde Fertilizantes. The directors of Verde Fertilizantes are Felipe Paolucci, Elton Gonlçaves, Edson Santos and Marcus Ribeiro. Despite the controls that the Group has put in place, there may be risks associated with ensuring that the corporate actions of Verde Fertilizantes reflect the decisions of the Board of Directors and management of the Group.

Political, Economic and Social Instability Associated Key Priorities

Political, economic and social instability may affect our business including, for instance, if any of the jurisdictions in which we operate introduce restrictions on monetary distributions, forced divestitures or changes to or nullification of existing agreements, mining permits or leases.

Cybersecurity Threats

Cyberattacks or breaches of our systems, including our CRM, or exposure to potential computer viruses, could lead to disruptions to our operations, loss of data, or the unintended disclosure of confidential information and/or personally identifiable information or property damage.

QUALIFIED PERSON

Scientific and technical information contained in this MD&A is based on the Pre-Feasibility Study technical report filed by the Group in 2022, and prepared by consultants, specialists in the fields of geology, exploration, mineral resource and mineral reserve estimation and classification, mining, geotechnical, environmental, permitting, metallurgical testing, mineral processing, processing design, capital and operating cost estimation, and mineral economics.

The following individuals, by virtue of their education, experience and professional association, are considered Qualified Person ("QP") as defined in the NI 43-101 standard, for this report, and are members in good standing of appropriate professional institutions:

- Bradley Ackroyd. B.Sc., MAIG, principal consulting geologist for AMS, responsible for the resource estimates;
- Beck Nader. D.Sc., M.Sc., MAIG, Senior Advisor at BNA, responsible for the reserve estimates, processing and economical assessment.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Group can be found on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.ca and on the Group's website at www.investor.verde.ag.

Subscribe to receive Verde's updates: http://cloud.marketing.verde.ag/InvestorsSubscription.

GLOSSARY

3D Alliance®: Technology developed to transform the three-dimensional structure of the raw materials added to the fertilizer. The materials are subjected to a mechanical process, increasing their specific surfaces and forming microparticles that release nutrients progressively. The fertilizers resulting from the mixture are homogeneous and can be evenly distributed in the soil. The 3D Alliance® technology is used in the Low-Carbon Specialty Fertilizer Products production process.

Additionality: In the context of environmental sustainability and carbon offset projects, "additionality" refers to the extra or supplementary benefits that such initiatives bring beyond the existing or planned actions. Essentially, for a project to claim additionality, its positive outcomes—such as carbon reductions—must be above and beyond what would have occurred without the project. This concept ensures that credits and offsets purchased or credited to an organization genuinely represent new and extra reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, rather than funding pre-existing initiatives.

ANM: See "National Mining Agency".

Bio Revolution: Verde's technology that enables the incorporation of microorganisms to mineral fertilizers. K Forte® will be the first fertilizer in the world to use Bio Revolution technology. The Group has filed for patent protection of its Bio Revolution technology.

Carbon Credits: Quantifiable units representing verified emissions reductions achieved through carbon offsetting and removal activities. One carbon credit corresponds to the prevention or removal of one metric ton of CO₂ or its equivalent. Entities, including businesses and individuals, can acquire these credits by backing climate initiatives.

Carbon dioxide equivalent ("CO₂e"): Metric measure used to compare the emissions of the different greenhouse gases based upon their global warming potential (GWP), normalized to the equivalent amount of CO₂.

Carbon dioxide removal certificates ("CORCs"): Electronic document that records the Attributes of CO₂ Removal from registered Production Facilities. Each CORC represents a Net Carbon Dioxide Removal (CDR) volume of 1 ton of Long-Term CO₂ Removal, equivalent to 1 carbon credit.¹⁸

¹⁸ Source: Puro Earth, Puro Standard General Rules, V3.1.

Carbon Footprint: The cumulative amount of greenhouse gases produced by activities of an entity, be it a business, nation, individual, or specific action.

Carbon Markets: Platforms for trading carbon credits, falling into two categories:

- Compliance Markets: stems from policy requirements across different levels, like the Kyoto Protocol's inaugural market, where participants had to meet emissions reduction targets partially by purchasing carbon offsets.
- Voluntary Markets: enables entities to trade carbon credits voluntarily to achieve targets such as carbon neutrality. Unlike compliance markets, voluntary market transactions aren't tied to legal emissions reduction mandates.

Carbon Sequestration: The long-term capture and stable storage of atmospheric carbon dioxide. This can be achieved by harnessing natural reservoirs such as plants, soils, geological formations, and oceans.

CDR (Carbon Dioxide Removal): The practice of extracting carbon dioxide from the atmosphere post-release and securely storing it for extended durations. Carbon removal methods vary, encompassing nature-based solutions (e.g., enhanced rock weathering) and mechanically intensive approaches. CDR solutions are recognized by the IPCC as crucial for maintaining global temperature increases below 1.5°C. 1 ton of Long-Term Net CO₂ Removal (CDR) is equivalent to 1 carbon credit.

Cerrado Verde Project ("the Project"): Located in Minas Gerais state, Brazil, it is a potassium-rich deposit 100% owned by Verde, from which the Group is producing solutions for crop nutrition, crop protection, soil improvement, and increased sustainability. The Project has an NI 43-101 Measured and Indicated Mineral Resource Estimate of 1.47 billion tons at a grade of 9.28% K₂O, which includes a Measured Mineral Resource of 1.85 billion tons with an average grade of 8.60% K₂O. The Pre-Feasibility Study of the Project evaluated the technical and financial aspects of producing 50 Mtpy of the Product divided in three scenarios: "Plant 3 Scenario1" (10 Mtpy); "23Mtpy Scenario" (23 Mtpy) and "50Mtpy Scenario" (50 Mtpy). The Cerrado Verde Project has been in production since 2017.

CIF ("Cost Insurance and Freight"): Shipment term used to indicate that the seller is responsible for the goods and costs of insurance and freight from the factory to the buyer's destination.

Climate Change: A change of climate attributed directly or indirectly to human activity that alters the composition of the global atmosphere and which is in addition to natural climate variability observed over comparable time periods.¹⁹

Co-benefits: Co-benefits refer to the positive, secondary outcomes derived from initiatives primarily designed to combat climate change. For example, opting to walk or cycle instead of driving not only reduces carbon emissions but also promotes a healthier way of living. Likewise, certain techniques such as enhanced rock weathering also yield other advantages including improved soil health and decreased ocean acidity. In addition to their capability for carbon capture, Verde's Products also serve as a source of potash, a vital nutrient for plants.

Cradle-to-Grave: Assessment that considers CO₂e emission impacts at each stage of a product's life cycle, from the time natural resources are extracted from the ground and processed through each subsequent stage of manufacturing, transportation, product use, and ultimately, disposal.

Deforestation: Deforestation refers to the widespread removal of trees and vegetation from areas traditionally characterized as forests. This phenomenon is not only observed when trees are directly exploited but also when the land is repurposed for other endeavors. Such activities pose significant ecological threats, leading to habitat loss, reduced biodiversity, and increased greenhouse gas emissions.

Dust Control: Technology that promotes a slight aggregation effect on the ultrafine particles of K Forte® and Low-Carbon Specialty Fertilizer Products, enabling the optimization of crop fertilization by reducing drift during application. The micro-particles are easily dispersed in the soil and their contact is maximized by the ultrafine particle size of Verde's fertilizers, providing uniform application and efficient nutrition to crops.

Enhanced Rock Weathering (ERW): Enhanced Rock Weathering is a technique that accelerates the natural process of geological weathering to capture and store CO₂ more efficiently by using finely ground rock, significantly speeding up a process that would naturally take millennia. Recent analyses on Verde's Products, conducted at Newcastle University under the supervision of ERW expert Prof. David Manning, PhD, have confirmed the potential to extract CO₂ from the atmosphere at a rate of 120kg per ton of product. However, the measurement and crediting of this CO₂ sequestration capability are still under evaluation, and the uncertainty surrounding test results may affect the project's profitability, though it poses no direct risk to the Group. Management will continuously reassess the associated risks and opportunities as new data emerges and the project evolves.

36

¹⁹ Source: United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. Available at: https://unfccc.int/resource/ccsites/zimbab/conven/text/art01.htm#:~:text=2.,observed%20over%20comparable%20time%20 periods

Environmental License ("Licença Ambiental"): The environmental licensing process consists of a three-step system, each step is a separate license contingent upon the prior step. In the state of Minas Gerais there is the possibility of licensing phases simultaneously, depending on the size of the project, according to the Normative Resolution 217/2017. The three phases are, as follows:

- Preliminary License ("Licença Prévia LP"): Granted at the planning stage of the project, this license
 signals the approval of its location, concept and environmental feasibility. It establishes the basic
 requirements to be met during the subsequent implementation phases. The maximum term for LPs is five
 years.
- Installation License ("Licença de Instalação Ll"): This license authorizes the setup of the works and
 commencement of construction based on the specifications set forth in the previous license and the approved
 plans, programs and project designs, including environmental control measures. The maximum term for Lls
 is six years.
- Operating License ("Licença de Operação LO"): This license authorizes the operation contingent upon
 compliance with the terms of the LO and the LI, including any environmental control measures and operating
 conditions. The maximum term for LOs is 10 years.

At the federal level, the environmental licenses are regulated by the Brazilian National Council for the Environment ("Conselho Nacional do Meio Ambiente - CONAMA)" Resolution No. 237/1997 and by Complementary Law No. 140/2011; at the state level, the environmental license are regulated by the State Environmental Policy Council ("Conselho Estadual de Política Ambiental – COPAM").

Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG): Criteria set to evaluate a Group's sustainability and societal responsibility, encompassing three pillars. The Environmental pillar examines emissions, resource usage, and sustainability efforts. The Social pillar reviews labor practices, supply chain ethics, and employee growth. Governance focuses on shareholder rights, corporate accountability, and board-level diversity. The ESG is used by investors to gauge non-financial risks in a business's operations.

Exploration Authorization ("Alvará de Pesquisa"): Once mineral exploration is completed, a final exploration report must be submitted for ANM's review and approval. If approved, the next step is to file, within one year, all applications for a mining concession with the Ministry of Mines and Energy (MME). The Exploration Authorization guarantees to the owner, be it an individual or a legal entity, the power and duty to carry out mineral research work in the entitled area. It grants the rights to conduct exploration activities for a period from two to four years, which may be renewed for an additional period (and potentially additional renewals on a case-by-case basis). An exploration authorization does not entitle the holder the right to extract mineral substances. During the research work, extraction will only be allowed in exceptional circumstances, with a specific title issued by the ANM (see Mining Permit – "Guia de Utilização"). At the end of the research stage, the holder of the mining right must present a Final Exploration Report with the results obtained from the work.

Exploration Authorization Application ("Requerimento de Pesquisa"): Claim for the geological exploration of an area. Interested parties must file an application for exploration authorization with the ANM and state a case for conducting mineral exploration activities. The Exploration Authorization Applications are analyzed in order of filing date. If the party requesting an exploration authorization meets the necessary legal requirements and an exploration authorization has not been previously issued for any part of the area in question, then the ANM will grant the exploration authorization.

Feasibility Study ("Plano de Aproveitamento Econômico – PAE"): report filed as part of the Mining Concession Application. It demonstrates quantitative geological and technological study of the mineral deposit and as well as demonstrating the technical-economic feasibility of a mine.

Final Exploration Report ("Relatório Final de Pesquisa"): At the end of the exploration stage, the holder of the mining right must present a Final Exploration Report with the results obtained from the work, containing a quantitative geological and technological study of the mineral deposit and demonstrate the technical-economic feasibility of a mine. The ANM analyses this report technically through a site visit. If the ANM approves the report based on the potential merits of a future mining operation, the titleholder has a one-year period to prepare and file the Mining Concession Application with the Federal Minister of Mines and Energy.

FOB ("Free on Board"): Shipment term used to indicate that the buyer is responsible for the goods and costs of insurance and freight from the seller's product factory.

Gigaton: A gigaton, abbreviated as "Gt," is a metric unit equal to one billion tons. Often used in carbon sequestration discussions, the IPCC emphasizes the need to sequester ten gigatons of CO₂ annually by 2050 to limit global warming to 1.5°C. For context, Verde's 3.32 billion tons of mineral resources hold a total carbon removal potential of 0.40 gigatons of CO₂.

Glauconitic Siltstone: Derived from a naturally occurring potassium silicate rock, Glauconitic Siltstone has been

valued as a natural potassium fertilizer for over 250 years. Notably, it stands out for its superior weathering

properties in comparison to other materials. This rock is the foundational raw material for all Verde Agritech

products. Its composition includes glauconite (40%-80%), K-feldspar (10%-15%), quartz (10%-60%), muscovite-

sericite (5%), biotite (2%), titanium oxide (<1%), manganese oxide (<1%), goethite (<1%), and trace amounts of

barium phosphate and rare-earth element phosphates.

Global Warming: This term describes the ongoing increase in Earth's average surface temperature, primarily

due to human activities since the onset of the Industrial Revolution. The primary cause is the release of

greenhouse gases which trap heat in the atmosphere, leading to a rough average temperature rise of about

0.2°C per decade.

Group: Verde Agritech Ltd (Verde Agritech Plc to July 29, 2022) and its subsidiaries.

Hectare: One hectare is equal to 10,000 square meters and is equivalent to approximately 2.47 acres.

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC): United Nations body for assessing the science related

to climate change. The IPCC prepares comprehensive Assessment Reports about the state of scientific.

technical and socio-economic knowledge on climate change, its impacts and future risks, and options for

reducing the rate at which climate change is taking place. It also produces Special Reports on topics agreed to

by its member governments, as well as Methodology Reports that provide guidelines for the preparation of

greenhouse gas inventories.20

International Organization for Standardization ("ISO"): Independent, non-governmental international

organization with a membership of 169 national standards bodies. The Organization is a global network of the

world's leading standardizers. Through its members, it brings together experts to share knowledge and develop

voluntary, consensus-based, market relevant International Standards that support innovation and provide

solutions to global challenges.21

ISO: See "International Organization for Standardization"

KCI: See "Potassium Chloride".

K Forte® ("the Product"): Multinutrient potassium fertilizer brand marketed in Brazil by the Group.

²⁰ Source: Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. Available at: https://www.ipcc.ch/

²¹ Source: ISO. Available at: https://www.iso.org/what-we-do.html

39

 K_2O : Chemical term used in the analysis and marketing of fertilizers that contain different potassium compounds, as a comparison of their relative potassium content when compared to equivalent potassium oxide (K_2O).

Kilometer: Metric unit of measurement approximately equal to 0.62 miles.

Life Cycle Analysis ("LCA"): Life-cycle assessment is a process of evaluating the effects that a product has on the environment over the entire period of its life thereby increasing resource-use efficiency and decreasing liabilities. The LCA is a standardized, scientific method that can be used to study the environmental impact of either a product or the function the product is designed to perform.²² The terms "assessment" and "analysis" are used interchangeably by different companies, but with the same objective. **LCA:** See "Life Cycle Analysis".

Megaton: One megaton is equal to one million tons. The term "megaton" is often utilized to measure greenhouse gas emissions and address carbon removal objectives.

Measured Mineral Resource: That part of a mineral resource for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape and physical characteristics are so well established that they can be estimated with confidence sufficient to allow the appropriate application of technical and economic parameters to support production planning and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit. The estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration, sampling and testing information gathered through appropriate techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill holes that are spaced closely enough to confirm both geological and grade continuity. A measured mineral resource has a higher level of confidence than that applying to either an indicated mineral resource or an inferred mineral resource. It may be converted to a proven mineral reserve or to a probable mineral reserve.

Micro S Technology®: The Group's exclusive elemental sulfur micritization technology, that allows for a larger contact surface. This facilitates the work of microorganisms and oxidation rate increases and so nutrients become available to plants more efficiently. This increases the absorption of sulfur and, consequently, the development of the plant. Micro S Technology® allows micronized sulfur, one of the additional nutrients most required by farmers, to be added to Low-Carbon Specialty Fertilizer Products.

Mine Site: An economic unit comprised of an underground and/or open pit mine, a treatment plant and equipment and other facilities necessary to produce metals concentrates, in existence at a certain location.

_

²² Source: European Environment Agency.

Mineral Reserve: A mineral reserve is the economically mineable part of a measured and/or indicated mineral resource. It includes diluting materials and allowances for losses, which may occur when the material is mined or extracted and is defined by studies at pre-feasibility or feasibility level as appropriate that include application of modifying factors. Such studies demonstrate that, at the time of reporting, extraction could reasonably be justified. The reference point at which mineral reserves are defined, usually the point where the ore is delivered to the processing plant, must be stated. It is important that, in all situations where the reference point is different, such as for a saleable product, a clarifying statement is included to ensure that the reader is fully informed as to what is being reported. The public disclosure of a mineral reserve must be demonstrated by a pre-feasibility study or feasibility study.

- Probable Mineral Reserve: The economically mineable part of an indicated, and in some circumstances, a measured mineral resource. The confidence in the modifying factors applied to a probable mineral reserve is lower than that applied to a proven mineral reserve.
- Proven Mineral Reserve: The economically minable part of a measured mineral resource. A proven
 mineral reserve implies a high degree of confidence in the modifying factors.

Mineral Resource: A mineral resource is the concentration or occurrence of solid material of economic interest in or on the Earth's crust in such form, grade or quality and quantity that there are reasonable prospects for eventual economic extraction. The location, quantity, grade or quality, continuity and other geological characteristics of a mineral resource are known, estimated, or interpreted from specific geological evidence and knowledge, including sampling.

• Indicated Mineral Resource: That part of a mineral resource for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape and physical characteristics can be estimated with a level of confidence sufficient to allow the appropriate application of technical and economic parameters to support mine planning and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit. The estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration and testing information gathered through appropriate techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill holes that are spaced closely enough for geological and grade continuity to be reasonably assumed. An indicated mineral resource has a lower level of confidence than that applied to a measured mineral resource and may only be converted to a probable mineral reserve.

- Inferred Mineral Resource: That part of a mineral resource for which quantity and grade or quality can be estimated on the basis of geological evidence and limited sampling and reasonably assumed, but not verified, geological and grade continuity. The estimate is based on limited information and sampling gathered through appropriate techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill holes. An inferred mineral resource has a lower level of confidence than that applying to an indicated mineral resource and must not be converted to a mineral reserve. It is reasonably expected that the majority of inferred mineral resources could be upgraded to indicated mineral resources with continued exploration.
- Mineral Right ("Direito Minerário"): Authorization to research and/or prospect a tenement. It is granted by the federal government through the ANM or the MME, depending on their respective competencies.

Mineralization: The natural process whereby organic matter is converted over time into mineral nutrients. In the carbon removal industry, 'mineralization' also refers to the act of injecting CO₂ into rock for permanent storage.

Mining Concession Application ("Requerimento de Lavra"): This application must satisfy certain requirements, including the presentation of the mining Group's Feasibility Study ("Plano de Aproveitamento Econômico – PAE"). While the ANM reviews the application for a mining concession, the applicant retains the exclusive rights to this area. Mine construction and development activity can only begin after the publication of a mining concession issued by the MME and provided that the respective license is also granted pursuant to applicable Brazilian environmental laws.

Mining Concession ("Portaria de Concessão de Lavra"): guarantees to the owner the power and duty to explore the mineral deposit until it is exhausted, without a definite term. The title can only be obtained by mining companies and only after undertaking the authorized exploration through an exploration authorization and subsequent approval of the Final Exploration Report. One of the essential documents for requesting a mining concession is the Feasibility Study, which must demonstrate the technical and economic viability of the project and indicate, among other information, the mining method, the planned scale of production and the mine closure plan.

Mining Permit ("Guia de Utilização"): exceptional mining permit with predetermined expiration date. It is granted by the ANM and allows the mineral extraction in the area before the grant of a Mining Concession, according to the environmental legislation.

Ministry of Mines and Energy ("Ministério de Minas e Energia – MME"): federal government's branch responsible for making public policy that covers the geological, mineral and energy resources, hydroelectric, mining, and metallurgic energy sectors.

MME: See "Ministry of Mines and Energy".

Measurement, Reporting, and Verification ("MRV"): This is a systematic process designed to quantify the

reductions in greenhouse gas emissions achieved through specific environmental initiatives. It involves the

careful monitoring of emission reductions over a set timeframe, followed by the compilation and submission of

this data to a certified third-party organization. The third-party's role is to validate the accuracy of the reported

data, which upon confirmation, can lead to the certification of the results and the issuance of carbon credits.

MRV: See "Measurement, Reporting, and Verification".

Mtpy: Million tons per year.

N Keeper® Technology: proprietary processing technology for glauconitic siltstone that alters its physical-

chemical properties to enable ammonia retention for use as a calibrated additive in Nitrogen fertilizers. N

Keeper® leads to the reduction of Nitrogen volatilization loss, which increases the efficiency of crop fertilization

and mitigates the impact on the environment and climate changes.

National Mining Agency ("Agência Nacional de Mineração - ANM"): federal agency subordinated to the

Ministry of Mines and Energy. It is responsible for the management of mining activities and Brazilian mineral

resources. Former National Department of Mineral Production ("Departamento Nacional de Produção Mineral -

DNPM").

NI 43-101: Refers to Canada's National Instrument 43-101, which establishes the standards for disclosure of

mineral projects. Verde Agritech, in compliance with these standards, reports a combined measured and

indicated mineral resource of 1.47 billion tons at 9.28% K₂O and an inferred mineral resource of 1.85 billion tons

at 8.60% K₂O (using a 7.5% K₂O cut-off grade).

Open Pit: Surface mining in which the ore is extracted from a pit. The geometry of the pit may vary with the

characteristics of the ore body.

Ore: A mineral or aggregate of minerals from which metal can be economically mined or extracted.

Ore Grade: The average amount of K₂O expressed as a percentage.

PFS: See "Pre-Feasibility Study".

43

Potassium chloride ("KCI"): The most commonly used source of potash. It is composed of approximately 52%

of potassium ("K") and 47% of Chloride (Cl $^-$), representing 60% of K_2O . Potassium Chloride's salinity index is

116. According to the article 'Effects of Some Synthetic Fertilizers on the Soil Ecosystem' (HEIDE HERMARY,

2007), applying 1 pound of potassium chloride to the soil is equivalent to applying 1 gallon of bleach. Verde's

Product eliminates the need for Potassium Chloride. KCl is also frequently referred to as muriate of potash

("MOP").

Pre-Feasibility Study ("PFS"): A PFS is an in-depth analysis assessing the technical and economic viability of

a mineral project. It evaluates various aspects of the project once it reaches a stage where key methods like

underground mining or open pit configurations are defined, along with effective mineral processing techniques.

The study also entails a financial review, grounded in reasonable assumptions regarding modifying factors and

other pertinent elements. This allows a Qualified Person to ascertain if any portion of the mineral resource can

transition to a mineral reserve. Notably, a PFS offers a lower level of confidence compared to a full feasibility

study.

Product: Multinutrient potassium fertilizer marketed in Brazil under the brands K Forte® and Low-Carbon

Specialty Fertilizer Products and internationally as Super Greensand®, the production and sale of which is the

principal activity of the Group.

Qualified Person: As defined in NI 43-101, an individual who: (a) is an engineer or geoscientist with at least five

years of experience in mineral exploration, mine development or operation, or mineral project assessment, or

any combination of these; (b) has experience relevant to the subject matter of the mineral project and the

technical report; and (c) is a member or licensee in good standing of a professional association.

Reforestation: This term refers to the process of replenishing depleted or destroyed forest areas by planting

new trees. This can be achieved naturally or artificially, and it is a vital strategy for mitigating the impacts of

deforestation, such as loss of biodiversity and increased carbon dioxide levels in the atmosphere. Reforestation

helps restore ecosystems, improve air quality, and combat climate change.

Renewable Energy: These are systems of energy generation that do not depend on the extraction and

combustion of fossil fuels and can be sustainably replenished without contributing to an increase in carbon

emissions. Verde's production process relies on renewable zero-emission hydropower for 100% of its electricity

needs.

Super Greensand® ("the Product"): Multinutrient potassium fertilizer brand marketed internationally by the

Group.

Ton: A unit of weight. One metric ton equals 2,204.6 pounds or 1,000 kilograms.

tpy: Tons per year.

44